
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

 

MAYOR WILL STOCKWIN  MAYOR PRO TEM MARNIE MENDOZA 

COUNCILMEMBERS  STEVE HARVEY  KIM DOUGLASS  

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

September 26, 2018 

Closed  Session 6:30 PM    Regular Session 7:00 PM 
 

 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

September 26, 2018 

 
Page 1 of 2  

 

 

1. CLOSED  SESSION   

1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

1B. Roll Call 

1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items  

1D. Closed Session 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation Pursuant To Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1): People of The State Of California vs Church of Modern Medicine, Placer County 

Superior Court Case # SCV41724.  
 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated  Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 

pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 
 

2. CALL TO  ORD ER  

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Report from Closed Session  

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 

2D. Roll Call 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented  or amended. 
 

3. PRESEN TATION  

3A. Service Proclamation 

 Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Substation Commander  
 

4. CON SEN T CALEN DAR 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No discussion of 

these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent 

Agenda for discussion, please notify the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 

4A. Minutes – Regular meeting August 22, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 22, 2018. 

4B. Cash Summary – August, 2018 

 Recommendation:  Accept and file. 

4C. Sierra Oaks Estates Sewer Easements 

 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 54-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute quitclaim 

deeds for existing sewer easements and accept new deeds for sewer easements for the City’s 

sewer main through the Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision. 

4D. Bureau Veritas Contract for Building Inspection Services  

 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 55-2018 authorizing the City Manager to extend the 

contract with Bureau Veritas for build ing inspection Services on an as needed basis not to exceed 

$72,000 and subject to renewal June 30, 2019. 
 



 Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 
72 hours prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

September 26, 2018 

 
Page 2 of 2  

 

5. PUBLIC COMMEN T 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter ju risdiction of 

the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes in 

length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

6. COUN CIL, STAFF AND  OTHER REPORTS 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at committee 

meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal 

action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

6A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 

6B. City Operations Update – City staff 

6C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARIN G 

7A. Public Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit and Variance for the property located at 120 N. 

Foresthill Street. 

 Staff Presentation:  Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

 Recommendation:  Hold a Public Hearing Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 56- 2018 

approving a Conditional Use Permit and  a Variance for the property located  at 120 N. Foresthill 

Street. 
 

8. COUN CIL BUSIN ESS 

8A. Amendment to Maidu Village Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 

 Staff Presentation:  Alfred  A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 57-2018 approving the First 

Amendment To The Road Improvement Deposit Agreement with the developers of the Maidu 

Village Project. 

8B. Grant Funding for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements 

 Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 58-2018 authorizing the City 

Manager to sign and file a Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement for the 

State Water Resources and Control Board  for the planning, design, and  construction of Sewer 

Collection and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements. 

8C. Donation of Antique Fire Engines to the Colfax Firefighters Association 

 Staff Presentation:  Brian Eagan, Colfax Fire Battalion Chief 

 Recommendation:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 59-2018 authorizing donation of 

two antique fire trucks to the Colfax Firefighters Association. 
 

9. GOOD OF THE ORDER - INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Informal observation reports and inquiries regarding the business of the City may be presented by Council members under this agenda item 

or requests for placement of items of interest on a future agenda.  No action will be taken. 
 

10. AD JOURN MEN T 
 

 

I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted   

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted  prior to action being initiated  in a court of l aw.  If you challenge City Council action 

in court, you may be limited  to raising only those issues you or someone else raised  at a public hearing described  in this 

notice/ agenda, or in written correspondence delivered  to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said  public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes August 22, 2018 
 

6A.      City of Colfax 
    City Council Minutes 
    Regular Meeting of Wednesday, August 22, 2018 
    City Hall Council Chambers 
    33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 6:29PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
1C. Public Comment on Closed Session Items 

There was no public comment. 
1D. Closed Session 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation. Initiation of litigation pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): One potential case.  
 

Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): One potential case. 
 

Closed session ended at 6:48PM. 
 

2 OPEN SESSION 
2A. Call to Order 

Mayor Stockwin called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. 
2B. Report from Closed Session 

City Attorney Cabral noted there was nothing to report from Closed Session.   
He stated there have been several questions regarding an unauthorized cannabis 
dispensary at 333 S. Canyon Way.  The City has several legal processes which must be 
followed before taking action.  The City has sent legal notices to the owners of the property 
and the proprietors.  Assuming the City receives no responses, the City will take action.  

2C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Wes Heathcock, City Manager, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2D. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the agenda order. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

3 CONSENT CALENDAR 
3A. Minutes - Regular Meeting August 8, 2018 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 8, 2018. 
3B. Cash Summary:  July 2018 

Recommendation:  Accept and file. 
 
 
 

ITEM 4A
1 of 5



City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes August 22, 2018 

3C. State and Federal Surplus Property Program 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution 54-2018 authorizing the Community Services 
Director or City Manager to acquire surplus property through the auspices of the California 
State Agency for Surplus Property in the form provided by the Department of General 
Services. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked to pull the Minutes of the August 8, 2018 meeting for discussion. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved items 3B and 3C. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked for clarification of the consensus for “Item 7B – Commercial 
Cannabis Retailer Permit Application Progress” which was discussed during Council Business at 
the August 8, 2018 Regular Council Meeting. 

City Attorney Cabral responded.  Council was asked to give direction to staff regarding the 
application process for the four businesses which have submitted applications for Commercial 
Cannabis Retail Permits.  Two Council members asked to stop the process, one preferred to defer 
the process and allow the next Council to address the permitting process and one recommended 
staff continue with the approval process now.  As three of the four Council members were not in 
favor of continuing the approval process at this time, staff will not take further action on the 
Commercial Cannabis Retailer Permit process.  Staff will issue refunds to the four applicants and 
suspend all activities related to cannabis permits until otherwise instructed. 

Councilmember Douglass stated he would personally like to have the subject brought back for 
discussion as he did not fully understand what his vote meant at the previous meeting.  He would 
have liked a clearer explanation. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza asked about the status of the existing dispensary. 
City Attorney Cabral responded there will be no legal basis for allowing the existing dispensary 
to continue operating.  Chapter 5.32 of the Colfax Municipal Code requires all Commercial 
Cannabis Businesses (CCB) to have a permit.  As Council has directed staff to stop the permit 
process, a permit cannot be issued.   

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, the City Council 
approved the Minutes of the August 8, 2018 Meeting. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane 

 Ms. McCleary stated she is upset about the decision Council made last meeting.  She
felt the wording was confusing and she was surprised the decision closed Mr.
Dion’s business.  She feels the public was not made aware of the process.  Also, she
believes stopping the permitting process now will allow the State to take over
control of the tax income from the retail sales of cannabis.

Andrea Harrison, President of the Colfax Green Machine 
Ms. Harrison stated she is speaking in support of one of the CCB applicants which 
is very community centered and contributed towards the fireworks for the 3rd of 
July Celebration and has promised to donate enough to cover the cost of building 
the skatepark. 

ITEM 4A
2 of 5



City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes August 22, 2018 
 

Matthew Z’berg, representing RCP Colfax, a CCB applicant  
Mr. Z’berg stated his company would like to continue its outreach to the 
community, but stopping the permit process will stop the community donations as 
well as the business.   Stopping the permitting process sends a mixed message to 
all business owners who will be less likely to locate in Colfax. 

Sharon Conners, area resident  
Ms. Conners commented that the CCB applicants had no guarantee of a license.  
They were taking a risk to apply for a permit and should have been aware of the 
risk. 

Annie Aubrey, representing Colfax Wellness, a CCB applicant  
Ms. Aubrey asserted the vote to stop the CCB permitting process was not on the 
August 8, 2018 agenda so it was not fair to the community or the applicants.  She 
also stated a permitted and regulated CCB would combat the black market with 
regulated access to cannabis. 

Jim Dion, representing Golden State Patient Care, a CCB applicant and current dispensary  
Mr. Dion stated he has been tricked again and the City is operating under false 
pretenses.  He thought the intent was to grandfather his business in.  He read a 
letter written by his attorney which stated the City should not deny a permit to 
Golden State Patient Care.  Mr. Dion wants his license back. 

Pamela Craven, resident of Dixon, CA  
Ms. Dixon stated she feels fear is crippling the Council from allowing the CCB’s to 
continue with the permitting process.  She has recently been to a dispensary in 
Dixon and was impressed with the security and overall experience. 

 

Mayor Stockwin stated he is the only member of the Council who wants to continue the 
permitting process for CCB’s and there is an easy way to solve the issues.  

 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 
Councilmember Harvey 

 Councilmember Harvey represented the City at the Placer County Transportation 
Agency and the Air Quality Control District board meetings.  

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass represented the City at the SACOG board meeting. 
 He supported the community at the VFW pancake breakfast, the Chamber of 

Commerce Mixer, the Art Walk, and the Lions Club Car Show. 
 Councilmember Douglass noted 12 candidates are running for Council in the 

November election.  He is gratified to see so many present at the Council meeting 
tonight. 

Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
 Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza reminded folks to drive carefully since schools are back 

in session. 
 She supported the community at the Car Show and the Art Walk. 
 The Canyon View Senior Apartments now has an emergency evacuation plan in 

place. 
 She recommended everyone attend the VFW event on September 8, 2018 to honor 

veterans.  

ITEM 4A
3 of 5



City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes August 22, 2018 
 

Mayor Stockwin 
 Mayor Stockwin represented the City at the Mosquito and Vector Control District 

board meeting.  
 He will be meeting with PG&E and City Manager Heathcock to discuss their new 

Wildlife Program. 
  

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Heathcock 

 City Manager Heathcock stated he has placed information for the public on the 
back table regarding large grants from the State Water Board to mitigate sewer 
rates. 

 Diagrams of the upcoming Rising Sun project are also available.  Paving should 
begin on the project soon. 

  

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Fred Abbott, Event Liaison  

 Mr. Abbott presented Council with tokens of Railroad Days to create a festive mood 
and gave a report of the plans for Railroad Days. 

 He invited everyone to a fundraiser for the event which is scheduled at the Sierra 
Vista Community Center on August 24, 2018 at 5:30PM.  Dinner from Homie Joes 
and a raffle are slated for the evening. 

 Railroad Days will be September 15 and 16, 2018 and promises to be an exciting 
event with vendors, bands, a quilt show, Show and Shine car event and a 
presentation by Union Pacific of the Golden Spike Award to commemorate the 
150th anniversary of the transcontinental railroad.  Large railroad equipment is 
also scheduled to be on display and the Chinese Workers Memorial will have a 
presentation at the depot. 

 Mr. Abbott asked Council to authorize the $500 donation which is budgeted in the 
2018/2019 Budget for the Railroad event.  Council assented to the request. 

Chris Nave, Public Information Officer, Gold Run California Highway Patrol 
 Officer Nave reported on construction and events which will impact highway 

driving in the next few weeks.  
 He announced a car seat event will be held in Alta on August 25, 2018 from 9-2.  

Officers will check car seats for correct installation and offer a car seat exchange 
for those that are unsafe. 

Sharon Conners and Foxey McCleary, Sierra Vista Community Center  
 Ms. McCleary invited everyone to the first Sunday breakfasts at VFW and the 

September 8, 2018 event to honor veterans.  
 She thanked the Lions Club for supporting the Art Walk by joining the event with a 

car show.  The last Art Walk of the year will be September 21, 2018. 
 Ms. Conners announced the local tribe will be hosting a family event celebrating 

Native American Culture on August 25, 2018 at the Sierra Vista Community Center. 
City Manager Heathcock acknowledged the City Volunteer Fire Department for their time staffing 

the local fire station for the past several weeks while CalFire is maxed out fighting fires in other 

regions of the state. 

 
 

ITEM 4A
4 of 5



City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes August 22, 2018 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
6A. Lease Agreement for City Owned Property at 99 Railroad Street, Suite 4. 

Staff Presentation:  Wes Heathcock, City Manager  
Recommendation:  Discuss staff recommendation and consider authorizing a 1-year lease 
agreement with Rainbow Music at a reduced rental rate as presented. 
 

City Manager Heathcock stated staff, in association with Property Manager, Tami Hampshire of 
Foothill Properties, has been working with the current tenant of the Railroad Car to negotiate a 
lease with the current tenant, Rainbow Music.  Rainbow Music has rented the property on a 
month by month basis since their lease expired in 2014.  Under the previous terms, Rainbow 
Music is allowed to reduce their payment through landscape maintenance.  They average about 
$150 monthly payment plus the maintenance.  The Fair Market Value for the lease is $650. 
 

Due to the current tenant’s history of maintaining the rail car and the potential difficulty of 
leasing a unique property, staff is proposing a lease agreement which is continues to allow the 
tenants to reduce their payment with qualifying rent reduction activities.   
 

Ms. Hampshire stated the tenants have agreed to a $500/month lease with a $150/month 
reduction for installing customized windows.  The tenants would pay $350/month. 
 

Councilmember Harvey asked if the railcar would be difficult to rent to someone else. 
Ms. Hampshire replied the property could be vacant for a long time. 
Mayor Stockwin requested staff take pictures of the current condition. 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza likes the concept of keeping a long term tenant in the building. 
 

Patty Schooley, Colfax resident, stated she would like Council to approve the lease because so 
many of Colfax youth have enjoyed the music lessons provided by Rainbow Music. 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza, Council 
approved a lease of the property at 99 Railroad, Suite 4 with Rainbow Music in the amount of 
$500/month with the ability to reduce the rent by $150 for a one year term with a roll call vote. 
Ayes:  Douglass, Harvey, Mendoza, Stockwin 
 

7 GOOD OF THE ORDER – INFORMAL COUNCIL STATEMENTS REGARDING THE 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY 
Councilmember Douglass suggested everyone think of a way to get traffic from the Burning Man 
event to come to downtown. 
Mayor Stockwin mentioned the fiber optic terminal at S. Auburn and Church has been repaired.  
 

8 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business, Mayor Stockwin adjourned the meeting at 8:02PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 26nd day of September, 2018 
 

ITEM 4A
5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: September 7, 2018 
SUBJECT: Cash Summary Report - August 2018 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
August 2018.  Monthly highlights include: 
 

 Negative cash fund balances in Special Revenues and Capital project funds are due to timing of 
funding allocations and reimbursements.   

o Fund 250 – To be funded by Streets & Roads monies through Placer County Transportation 
Agency and fund transfers.  Funding expected in latter part of fiscal year. 

o Second reimbursement request for Project 385 – Roundabout was finalized in early 
September. 

 Major Revenues for August included: Final accounting for quarter ended June 30, 2018 Sales Tax 
$218,000. 

 Major Expenses for August included:  Final payment to Winner Chevrolet $163,000 for property 
purchase  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transactions Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM  4B
1 of 10



ITEM  4B
2 of 10



ITEM  4B
3 of 10



ITEM  4B
4 of 10



ITEM  4B
5 of 10



ITEM  4B
6 of 10



ITEM  4B
7 of 10



ITEM  4B
8 of 10



ITEM  4B
9 of 10



ITEM  4B
10 of 10



1 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Dane Schilling, City Engineer, Laurie Loaiza, Senior Engineer 

DATE: September 12, 2018 
SUBJECT: Sierra Oaks Estates Sewer Easements 

X N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 54-2018 authorizing the City Manager to execute quitclaim 
deeds for existing sewer easements and accept new deeds for sewer easements for the City’s sewer 
main through the Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision. 

SUMMARY: 
On December 14, 2016 City of Colfax approved the Vesting Tentative Map for the Sierra Oaks subdivision, which 
included a Condition of Approval requiring construction of a new 15-inch diameter sanitary sewer main crossing 
Parcel 1 of the subdivision and a 20-foot easement centered on the main.  The 20-foot sewer easement was 
recorded on April 23, 2018.  Construction commenced shortly thereafter and in June 2018, it was determined 
the sewer needed to be realigned slightly to accommodate an existing hillside slope.  The revised sewer plan 
was approved by the City Engineer on June 29, 2018. 

The intent of the sewer easement is to provide the necessary property rights to locate and operate the sewer 
main across private property and allow the City access for maintenance and replacement of the sewer main and 
the associated manholes.  Since the sewer alignment was revised after the initial easements were recorded, the 
sewer easements need to be replaced to match the newly constructed sewer’s location. 

A copy of the Quitclaim Deed and a copy of the current easement recorded April 23, 2018 are attached for 
reference. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Although the City is reimbursing the Sierra Oaks Estates developer for costs associated with the replacement of 
the sewer main, the late change to accommodate the existing hillside was made at the developer’s request. 
Therefore, the developer will be responsible for the proposed action on this item. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 54-2018
2. Sewer easement recorded April 23, 2018
3. Quitclaim Deeds (easement)
4. New sewer easements

ITEM  4C
1 of 30



City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 54-2018 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE QUITCLAIM DEEDS FOR 
EXISTING SEWER EASEMENTS AND ACCEPT NEW DEEDS FOR SEWER 

EASEMENTS FOR THE CITY’S SEWER MAIN THROUGH  
THE SIERRA OAKS ESTATES SUBDIVISION 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax on December 14, 2016 approved the Vesting Tentative 
Map for the Sierra Oaks Subdivision, which included a Condition of Approval requiring the 
developer construct, on behalf of the City, a new 15-inch sanitary sewer main crossing the 
subdivision and to provide 20-foot easements for the new sewer main; and  

WHEREAS, on April 23, 2018, a 20-foot sewer easement was recorded on the Sierra 
Oaks Estates property centered on the proposed sanitary sewer pipe alignment; and 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 2018, the City Engineer approved a plan revision that changed 
the alignment of the 15-inch sewer main pipeline as necessary to meet unforeseen site 
constraints with the result the pipeline was no longer centered in the April 23, 2018 
easements; and 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has determined it is necessary for the existing sewer 
easements to be relinquished and replaced with new easements centered on the as-
constructed pipeline alignment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax 
authorizes the City Manager to: 

1. Approve the Quitclaim Deeds for the existing 20-foot sewer easement across
the Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision; and

2. Accept on behalf of the City of Colfax new 20-foot sewer easements across the
Sierra Oaks Estates Subdivision centered on the as-constructed location of the
City’s 15-inch diameter sewer main.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY PASSED AND 
ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 26th 

day of September 2018 by the following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

______________________________________ 
ATTEST: Will Stockwin, Mayor 

____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  4C
2 of 30



ITEM  4C
3 of 30



ITEM  4C
4 of 30



ITEM  4C
5 of 30



ITEM  4C
6 of 30



ITEM  4C
7 of 30

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Typewritten Text
X

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Polygonal Line

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Typewritten Text
X

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Typewritten Text
NEW

erstauss
Line

erstauss
Typewritten Text
SAME as EXISTING

erstauss
Line



ITEM  4C
8 of 30



ITEM  4C
9 of 30



ITEM  4C
10 of 30



ITEM  4C
11 of 30



ITEM  4C
12 of 30



ITEM  4C
13 of 30



ITEM  4C
14 of 30



ITEM  4C
15 of 30



ITEM  4C
16 of 30



ITEM  4C
17 of 30



ITEM  4C
18 of 30



ITEM  4C
19 of 30



ITEM  4C
20 of 30



ITEM  4C
21 of 30



ITEM  4C
22 of 30



ITEM  4C
23 of 30



ITEM  4C
24 of 30



ITEM  4C
25 of 30



Recording requested by
Sierra Oaks Estates LLC

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Eric R. Stauss for Sierra Oaks Estates, LLC  
9724 Wedgewood Place
Granite Bay, CA 95746

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Space above this line for recorder’s use 

SEWER EASEMENT 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, Sierra Oaks Estates LLC, a California Limited Liability 
Company, (hereinafter called “GRANTOR”) hereby grants to the City of Colfax, a public body, 
(hereinafter called “CITY”) a nonexclusive permanent easement in, on, over, and across that 
certain real property in the County of Placer, State of California, described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and depicted on Exhibit “B”, the map 
attached hereto showing the boundaries of the easement (hereinafter called the “EASEMENT 
AREA”).  In the event of any conflict between the description of the easement in Exhibit “A” 
and its depiction on Exhibit “B”, the description in Exhibit “A” controls. 

The easement granted herein is for city sewer line installation and maintenance by the CITY in, 
on, over and across the EASEMENT AREA subject to the terms and conditions that follow.  

1. GRANTOR grants to the CITY:

(a) an easement over the EASEMENT AREA for the purpose of installing, replacing
and maintaining the city’s underground sewer line;

(b) the right from time to time to trim and to cut down and clear away any and all
trees, tree roots, brush and landscaping now or hereafter on the EASEMENT
AREA  which may interfere, but only to the extent of the interference, with the
exercise of the CITY’s rights hereunder.

(c) the right to use, access and open all current and future gates on all streets and
roadways within the EASEMENT AREA or which are controlled by

ITEM  4C
26 of 30



GRANTOR and which control access to the EASEMENT AREA, including  
any equipment or pass codes needed to unlock any such gates, for the purpose of  
CITY exercising its rights hereunder. 

(d) the right to pass over adjacent land owned by GRANTOR to the minimum extent
required for the purpose of accessing the EASEMENT AREA in
performance  of activities in accordance with CITY’S rights hereunder.

2. Limited Construction.  GRANTOR shall not construct any permanent structure in the
EASEMENT AREA.   CITY shall not construct any above ground or ground level facility except
for sewer manholes used for maintenance of the sewer line.

3. Repairs.     The CITY shall promptly repair any and all damage caused to the EASEMENT
AREA, landscaping, fencing, and other improvements within and outside the EASEMENT
AREA, caused by or related to CITY’S exercise of its rights hereunder.

4. Indemnification.   CITY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless GRANTOR from and
against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, costs, actions, or suits, including for personal
injury, death, property damage, and reasonable attorney’s and consultant’s fees and costs, which
arise directly or indirectly out of, or in connection with, this Agreement and/or the CITY’s use,
operation or maintenance of its easement granted herein, unless the liabilities, damages, claims,
costs, actions, or suits are solely caused by the active negligence or willful misconduct of
GRANTOR.  Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, CITY shall not be required to
indemnify GRANTOR for any damage to GRANTOR’s streets and roadways caused solely by
the acts or omissions of GRANTOR.

5. Notice.  Any notice between the parties must be in writing and may be personally delivered or
sent by certified U.S. mail to the following addresses or other addresses as the parties may from
time to time designate in a written notice:

To GRANTOR : Sierra Oaks Estates LLC 
            c/o Eric R. Stauss 

9724 Wedgewood Place 
Granite Bay, CA 95604 

To CITY: City of Colfax 
33 South Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

ITEM  4C
27 of 30



4. Attorney’s Fees.  The prevailing party in any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement
shall be entitled to recover the full amount of all costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees that
the prevailing party has incurred as a result of such action.

5. Successors and Assigns.  The easement and covenants contained herein shall be and constitute
easements and covenants running with the land.  Each of the rights and obligations created by
this Sewer Easement shall be for the benefit of and shall be binding upon each successor owner
of the EASEMENT AREA.

6. Binding Effect.  This Emergency Vehicle Access Easement shall bind and inure to the benefit
of the respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of GRANTOR and
CITY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GRANTOR has executed this Sewer Easement. 

   Dated: ____________________________ 

Accepted: 

CITY OF COLFAX 

By _________________________ Dated: ________________________ 
         Wes Heathcock  
          City Manager

GRANTOR: 

SIERRA OAKS ESTATES LLC, 
a California Limited Liability Company 
By: Pinetop Properties LLC, its sole member 
a California Limited Liability Company, its 
Managing Member, 
By: Monarch Mine Investments LLC, 
Member, a California Limited Liability 
Company, its Manager 

By________________________________    
Eric R. Stauss, its Manager 

ITEM  4C
28 of 30



ITEM  4C
29 of 30



ITEM  4C
30 of 30



FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, Acting City Manager 

PREPARED By: Staff 

DATE July 20, 2017 

SUBJECT: Bureau Veritas Contract for Building Inspection Services 

N/A X FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $72,000 FROM FUNDS: 100-400 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 55-2018 authorizing the City Manager to extend the 
contract with Bureau Veritas for building inspection services on an as needed basis not to exceed 
$72,000 and subject to renewal June 30, 2019. 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 

The current contract with Bureau Veritas provides contract services for an onsite Building Inspector on an as 
needed basis.  Bureau Veritas is a respected leader in testing, inspection and certification services.  They have 
successfully provided Colfax with the services of Keith Bigbee, who has 14+ years of inspection experience in the 
region.  Mr. Bigbee is conducting building and site inspections as they are required and providing much needed 
updating to the Building Department systems.  The position is also available for code enforcement and nuisance 
abatement work.  Recently, the City has utilized Mr. Bigbee’s expertise on code enforcement issues.  The 
current contract with Bureau Veritas requires approval from City Council to extend services on an ongoing, as 
needed basis beyond June 2018.  The contract services were approved in conjunction with Council budget 
discussions.  Funding is through the General Fund with revenue available with the City’s increasing building 
permit activity. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 55-2018
2. Bureau Veritas Contract Extension (4

rd
 Amendment to the Contract)

3. Bureau Veritas Contract

ITEM  4D
1 of 19



City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № 55-2018 

AUTHORIZING THE ACTING CITY MANAGER TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT 
WITH BUREAU VERITAS FOR BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES ON AN AS 
NEEDED BASIS, NOT TO EXCEED $72,000 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2019  

Whereas, the City of Colfax needs the services of a Building Inspector on an on-call 
basis; and 

Whereas, Bureau Veritas is a qualified firm for supplying Building Inspection 
personnel; and 

Whereas, Bureau Veritas has successfully provided the services of Keith Bigbee who 
has over fourteen years of experience as a building inspector; and, 

Whereas, the Bureau Veritas initial contract has been fulfilled, and the City is need of 
extending the contract through June 30, 2019,  

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved and Declared by the City Council of the City of 
Colfax, that the City Manager is authorized to extend the contract with Bureau Veritas for 
Building Inspection services on an as needed basis, not-to-exceed $72,000. 

The Foregoing Resolution was Duly and Regularly Adopted at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 26th day of September 2018 by the 
following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

____________________________ 
Will Stockwin, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

ITEM  4D
2 of 19



FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF COLFAX AND BUREAU VERITAS 

This Fourth Amendment to the Consultant Services Agreement ("Third Amendment") dated 
September 27, 2018 is entered into by and between the City of Colfax ("City") and Bureau 
Veritas ("Consultant"). 

City and Consultant entered into that certain Consultant Services Agreement dated July 10, 
2015 ("Agreement"), whereby Consultant agreed to provide those services specified in the 
exhibits of the Agreement.  

City and Consultant now desire to amend the Agreement to extend the as needed contract 
through June 30, 2019, as provided in the approved Agreement authorized by the City 
Council with a not to exceed limit increase of $72,000 for fiscal year 2018-2019.  

Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment, all provisions of 
the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and after the date 
of this Amendment, whenever the term "Agreement" appears in the Agreement, it shall 
mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment.  

CITY OF COLFAX BUREAU VERITAS 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title Title 

Date Date 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________ 
City Attorney 

ITEM  4D
3 of 19



ITEM  4D
4 of 19



ITEM  4D
5 of 19



ITEM  4D
6 of 19



ITEM  4D
7 of 19



ITEM  4D
8 of 19



ITEM  4D
9 of 19



ITEM  4D
10 of 19



ITEM  4D
11 of 19



ITEM  4D
12 of 19



ITEM  4D
13 of 19



ITEM  4D
14 of 19



ITEM  4D
15 of 19



ITEM  4D
16 of 19



ITEM  4D
17 of 19



ITEM  4D
18 of 19



ITEM  4D
19 of 19



1 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: September 6, 2018 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit and a Variance for the property located 

at 120 N. Foresthill Street 

N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Hold a Public Hearing, discuss and consider adopting Resolution 56-2018 
approving a Conditional Use Permit and a Variance for the property located at 120 N. Foresthill Street.

PROJECT NOTICE: 
This hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of California Planning and Zoning Law, 
Title 17, Chapter 65000, Government Code, as amended.  

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:  Fatula Conditional Use Permit and Variance 
Applicant/Owner: Joseph and Mary Fatula 
Location: 120 N. Foresthill Street 
Land Use (existing) Single family residence 

Surrounding Uses 
North: UP Railroad 
South: Single family residence 
East: Single family residence 
West: Single family residence 

Assessor’s Parcel Number: 006-043-010
Zoning District: R-1-5 HD Single family, Historic District overlay
General Plan Designation: Residential Commercial

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The applicants are applying for a conditional use permit to build a 210+ square foot addition to the existing 
house, and a variance to increase the height of the existing garage and to allow off street parking within the 
front yard setback.  

ITEM  7A
1 of 14

X



2 

 

Conditional Use Permit 
The existing house, as located on the parcel, encroaches into the required rear yard setback. Because of its 
age (built in 1906), the house has legal nonconforming status which the zoning ordinance defines as “ a 
structure that does not conform to the regulations for height, coverage or yards of the district in which 
such structure is located, but which was in conformity with applicable regulation, if any, at the time of its 
erection.” The applicant is requesting to build an addition the will encroach in to the required rear yard and 
because “the nonconforming yard is not further reduced by such enlargement” (Code section 17.100.060), 
the addition is allowed with the approval of a conditional use permit. 
 

Variance 
A variance is requested to increase the height of the detached garage/carriage house above the 15 foot 
maximum height allowed for an accessory structure per section 17.96.030-C and to allow parking within 
the front yard setback. 
 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
The house was originally built in 1906 and over the years has seen a number of alterations and additions, 
some with the proper permits, some without. The current owners recently purchased the house and are 
undertaking a significant remodel of both the house and the detached garage. 
 

The 10,800+ square foot lot backs up to the Union Pacific Railroad property and is surrounded by single 
family development. The lot slopes down gently from the east (Foresthill St) to the west (UP property). 
Some grading and terracing of the lot has occurred through the issuance of a grading permit from the City 
Engineer. 
 

Conditional Use Permit: 
The applicants are proposing a 15’ x 14’ addition to the house to create a master bedroom area and also to 
create some livable space upstairs.  The conditional use permit is required to allow the proposed addition 
to encroach into the required rear yard setback. The house currently is approximately 7’-6” feet from the 
rear property line. The proposed addition will be approximately 9 feet from the property line. Because the 
proposed addition will be less of an encroachment into the setback than the original structure, the addition 
is allowed with the approval of a conditional use permit when the following findings can be made: 

 

1. The proposed use or development is substantially consistent with the City of Colfax general plan 
and any applicable specific plan. 

2. The proposed use or development generally conforms with all applicable standards and 
requirements of this title. 

3. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or development is generally 
compatible with and shall not adversely affect or be materially detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of persons residing or working in the area, or be detrimental or injurious to public or 
private property or improvements. 

4. The proposed use will not interfere with the nature and condition of the adjacent uses and 
structures. 

The house as currently built is small and awkward at 1100 square feet with 2 small bedrooms, 2 bathrooms 
and a small kitchen and dining room. The addition will create more usable space allowing for not only the 
master bedroom with attached bath, but also create usable attic space with a staircase to replace the 
pulldown ladder. 
 

Staff supports the conditional use permit as requested. 

ITEM  7A
2 of 14



3 

 

Variance: 
The variance is requested to improve/expand the existing garage and to allow additional parking with the 
front yard setback.  
 

The applicants are proposing to expand the existing garage by adding approximately 300 feet by extending 
the depth of the structure into the backyard. They also propose to increase the height of the garage to a 
maximum of 23’-7”, creating space for a second level. Access to this second level will be from an interior 
staircase located at the back of the building (refer to Attachments 6 and 7).  A “carport” space will also be 
incorporated into the structure creating 3 covered spaces. The zoning code limits the height of detached 
garages and other accessory units to a maximum of 15 feet. The increased height will allow for an attractive 
carriage house design for the garage in keeping with the style of the 1906 house. The project site is within 
the historic district and the design of the garage structure meets the intent of the Historic District overlay 
guidelines.  The project also includes a small walk-in basement area below the back portion of the garage 
that will be accessed through a pedestrian door from the back yard. 
 

The following findings must be made to support any variance request: 
 

1. There are special circumstances applicable to the property, including size, shape, topography, 
location or surroundings, such that the strict application of the provisions of this zoning ordinance 
deprives the property of privileges enjoyed by other property in the vicinity and under identical 
land use. 

2. The granting of the variance does not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent with the 
limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property is located. 

3. The granting of the variance does not allow a use or activity which is not otherwise expressly 
authorized by the regulations governing the subject parcel. 

4. The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or 
injurious to the property or improvements in such vicinity and land use district in which the 
property is located. 

Staff supports the variance as requested. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
This project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to the guidelines of the California 
Environmental Quality Act per section 15301(e), Existing Facilities. This class exemption includes minor 
alteration of existing structures. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Conditions of approval (Attachment 2) have been prepared to ensure the project is built as approved. Any 
significant changes to the approved design may require subsequent approval by the City Council. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve the attached Resolution. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 56-2018 
2. Conditions of Approval 
3. Site Plan 
4. Elevations of House 
5. Floor plans of House 
6. Elevations of garage 
7. Floor plans of garage 
8. Site photographs 

ITEM  7A
3 of 14



Resolution 56-2018 CUP and Variance 120N Foresthill Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 56-2018 
 

APPROVING THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND VARIANCE FOR THE 
PROPERTY AT 120 N. FORESTHILL STREET (APN 006-043-010) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax received an application for a Conditional Use Permit and a 
Variance to construct an addition to the legal nonconforming single family home at 
120 N Foresthill Street; and 

 

WHEREAS, the application also included a request for a Variance to construct a 
garage/carriage  house and two surface off street parking spaces within the front 
yard setback; and  

 

WHEREAS, the project has been determined to be categorically exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to section 15301 (e), existing facilities; and 

 

Conditional Use Permit Findings: 

WHEREAS, the proposed use or development is substantially consistent with the City of 
Colfax General Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed use or development generally conforms with all applicable 
standards and requirements of this title; and 

WHEREAS, the location, size, design and operating characteristics of the use or 
development is generally compatible with and shall not adversely affect or be 
materially detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or 
working in the area, or be detrimental or injurious to public or private property or 
improvements; and 

Variance Findings: 

WHEREAS, the proposed use will not interfere with the nature and condition of the 
adjacent uses and structures; and 

WHEREAS, there are special circumstances applicable to the property, including location 
and surroundings, such that the strict application of the provisions of this zoning 
ordinance deprives the property of privileges enjoyed by other property in the 
vicinity and under identical land use; and 

 

WHEREAS, the granting of the variance does not constitute a grant of special privileges 
inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which the property is located; and 

ITEM  7A
4 of 14



Resolution 56-2018 CUP and Variance 120N Foresthill Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the granting of the variance does not allow a use or activity which is not 
otherwise expressly authorized by the regulations governing the subject parcel; 
and 

WHEREAS, the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety 
or welfare, or injurious to the property or improvements in such vicinity and land 
use district in which the property is located; and 

WHEREAS, conditions of approval have been prepared and included as Exhibit A to this 
resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a noticed Public Hearing as required by City Code. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax approves 
the Conditional Use Permit and Variance for the property at 120 N. Foresthill Street. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the September 26, 2018 by 
the following vote of the Council: 

 
 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
         Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  7A
5 of 14



Fatula Conditional Use Permit and Variance 

File No. CUP2018-001 

 

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. Construction shall conform to the drawings and plans prepared by Spyglass Design and 

attached to the Staff Report dated September 26, 2018. Any modification will require 

review by Planning Staff and may require resubmittal to and approval by the City 

Council. 

 

2. Construction shall be limited as stated and permitted per section 8.28.010 of the Colfax 

Municipal Code. 

 

3. All requirements of the City Engineer shall be met.  Encroachment permits as 

distinguished from a building permit shall be obtained prior to commencing work in the 

public right-of-way. 

 

4. For projects that affect site drainage, a preliminary drainage plan shall be reviewed and 

approved by the City Engineer prior to issuance of building permits. 

 

5. Plans submitted to the Building Department for permit issuance shall be consistent with 

these approved plans dated September 26, 2018.  

ITEM  7A
6 of 14



ITEM  7A
7 of 14



ITEM  7A
8 of 14



ITEM  7A
9 of 14



ITEM  7A
10 of 14



ITEM  7A
11 of 14



ITEM  7A
12 of 14



ITEM  7A
13 of 14



 

Existing house (looking east from garage) 

 

 

Existing garage from across Foresthill St. 

ITEM  7A
14 of 14



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 

DATE September 13, 2018 

SUBJECT: Amendment To Maidu Village Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 57-2018 approving the first 
amendment to the Road Improvement Deposit Agreement with the developers of the Maidu Village 
Project 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
The City is planning to construct a roundabout at the intersection of South Auburn Street and the on-ramp 
and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80.  Design is moving forward. If the roundabout project continues 
at its present pace, staff anticipates soliciting construction bids in December 2018, and beginning 
construction in Spring, 2019. 
 
The City secured approximately $2,150,000 in grants to fund design and construction of the roundabout. 
Based on current engineering estimates, there is a funding shortfall of about $450,000.  A PCWA 
Reimbursement Agreement to relocate water lines is a separate cost item not included in the 
aforementioned values.  The City does not have sufficient funds at its disposal to fill that funding gap and 
has exhausted all conventional means of financing.  The roundabout project may have to be stopped unless 
the funding shortfall is covered.  Stopping the project will cause the state and federal grants available to the 
City to be lost. 
 
Jaskaran “Jay” Gill and Sukhwinder “Tony” Bhangu are members of Colfax Auburn LLC which owns or 
controls an 8.3-acre parcel of undeveloped land that fronts on South Auburn Street directly across from the 
Interstate-80 on-ramp and off-ramp that will be affected by the roundabout.  The property is commonly 
known as “Maidu Village”.  
 
Development of the Maidu Village property has been challenging, in part because of the expense of 
mitigating traffic impacts.  The developer initially anticipated that installing a traffic signal at the 
intersection of South Auburn and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 would adequately 
mitigate the impacts of development.  
 
 

ITEM  8A
1 of 19



2 

 

The City commissioned an Intersection Control Evaluation (“ICE”) study to examine the improvements to 
that intersection that will be needed to accommodate full development of the Maidu Village parcel.  The 
ICE study concluded that fully developing the Maidu Village parcel will require signalizing three 
intersections, not one.  Installing traffic signals at three intersections is cost-prohibitive.  The proposed 
roundabout will adequately mitigate the anticipated traffic impacts. 
 
The owner of the Maidu Village property proposes to develop it to include a gas station, sit-down 
restaurant, fast food restaurant, motel, and commercial building.  Developing the Maidu Village property 
will require the developer to construct various road frontage improvements along South Auburn Street. 
The estimated cost of constructing the frontage improvements is $240,000.  
 
The design of the developer’s road improvements is evolving.  Initial plans showed a dedicated right-turn 
lane into the developer’s project.  That has been eliminated.  A revised cost estimate based on elimination 
of the dedicated right-turn lane indicates a decreased overall cost, but the developer’s share remains 
$240,000 because the new cost estimate includes utility stub-outs whereas the prior cost estimate did not.   
 
It is impractical for the City to build the roundabout and the developer to separately install the frontage 
improvements.  The City and developer have tentatively agreed, therefore, that the City will construct the 
frontage improvements as part of the overall roundabout project construction.  
 
That $240,000 is the first partial source of funds whereby the City will fill the roundabout project funding 
shortfall.  Effective May 8, 2018, the City and developer entered a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement 
(the “Deposit Agreement”) that requires the Developer to deposit $240,000 into an escrow account as an 
advance against the cost of constructing frontage improvements for the Maidu Village project.  The 
Developer deposited $120,000 and is prepared to deposit the balance in phases.  
 
The roundabout project was on a “fast track” when the Deposit Agreement was executed.  At that time, 
staff anticipated bidding the roundabout project in July 2018 and beginning construction in September.  
That schedule was delayed, primarily as a result of additional conditions imposed by CalTrans.  
 
The Deposit Agreement was also premised upon negotiating a development agreement that would vest 
certain development rights in the Developer.  It was assumed that the development agreement was 
essential because Maidu Village project entitlements would not be completed until quite some time after 
roundabout construction began.  The Developer understandably did not want to commit significant 
resources to the project without assurances that it could develop its property.  
 
As things progressed, City staff accelerated the Maidu Village project entitlements and anticipate issuing 
Maidu project entitlements and permits before construction begins.  Negotiating the development 
agreement was delayed, anticipating that the entitlements would be accelerated and that the development 
agreement and all project permits and entitlements could be approved at the same time.  
 
The Deposit Agreement allowed 120 days to complete negotiation of a development agreement. That 
expired in mid-September so the Deposit Agreement deadlines need to be extended.  
 
 
 

ITEM  8A
2 of 19



3 

 

Before the Council this evening is the First Amendment To Road Improvement Deposit Agreement whereby 
the deadline for completing the development agreement will be extended for 120 days from the date it is 
signed by the City, and the deadline for the Developer to deposit the $120,000 balance will be as follows: 
an additional $30,000 when the initial $120,000 is expended plus the $90,000 balance when a development 
agreement is approved.  These are relatively minor changes necessitated by the changed circumstances 
related to the Roundabout project.  Staff recommends that the Council approve them.  
  
Staff will be available to answer Council’s questions.  
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
None. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Resolution 57-2018 
2. Amendment to Development Agreement for Road Improvement at Maidu Village 
3. Maidu Village Development Agreement 

ITEM  8A
3 of 19



Resolution 57-2018 1st Amend Maidu Deposit Agreement     Page 1 
 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 
Resolution № 57-2018 

 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO THE ROAD IMPROVEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

DEVELOPERS OF THE MAIDU VILLAGE PROJECT  
 

 
WHEREAS, the City is planning to construct a roundabout at the intersection of 

South Auburn Street and the on-ramp and off-ramp to westbound Interstate-80 (the 
“Roundabout”); and 

 
WHEREAS, design of the Roundabout is proceeding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City secured approximately $2,150,000 in grants to fund design and 

construction of the Roundabout but has a funding shortfall of approximately $450,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the undeveloped Maidu Village property fronts on South Auburn Street 

directly across from the Interstate-80 on-ramp and off-ramp that will be affected by the 
Roundabout; and  

 
WHEREAS, the owner of the Maidu Village property proposes to develop it to 

include a gas station, sit-down restaurant, fast food restaurant, motel, and commercial 
building; and 

 
WHEREAS, construction of the Roundabout will help mitigate traffic conditions 

within the City, including traffic impacts related to development of the Maidu Village 
parcel; and  

 
WHEREAS, developing the Maidu Village property will require the developer, at 

developer expense, to construct road frontage improvements (the “Road Frontage 
Improvements”) along South Auburn Street that are estimated to cost $240,000; and  

 
WHEREAS, constructing the Road Frontage Improvements as part of the 

Roundabout project will promote efficiency for both projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is willing to construct the Road Frontage Improvements, at 

developer expense, as part of constructing the Roundabout; and 
 
 
 

ITEM  8A
4 of 19



Resolution 57-2018 1st Amend Maidu Deposit Agreement     Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, effective May 8, 2018, the City and the Developer of the Maidu Village 
property executed a Road Improvement Deposit Agreement that required, among other 
things, the Developer to deposit $240,000 to pay for the Road Frontage Improvements and 
offset some of the City’s Roundabout project funding shortfall; and  

 
WHEREAS, circumstances have changed since the effective date of the Road 

Improvement Deposit Agreement and an amendment to that agreement is needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that approving the First Amendment To Road 

Improvement Deposit Agreement in the form attached to this Resolution is in the City’s 
best interests.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 

follows: 
 

1) The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are 
incorporated into this Resolution. 

 
2) The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of and in the name of 

the City of Colfax the First Amendment To Road Improvement Deposit 
Agreement in the form attached to this Resolution. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 

Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 26th day of September, 
2018 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

 
 
 
                           ___________________________________ 

ATTEST:      Will Stockwin, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  8A
5 of 19



September 26, 2018 DRAFT 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

ROAD IMPROVEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

This First Amendment to Road Improvement Deposit Agreement (“First Amendment”) is 

made and entered by and among the City of Colfax, a General Law City and Municipal 

Corporation of the State of California (“City”), and Colfax Auburn, LLC, a California Limited 

Liability Company (“Developer”). The City and Developer may be referred to herein 

individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.  

RECITALS 

This Agreement is entered on the basis of the following facts, understandings and 

intentions of the Parties: 

 

A. Effective May 8, 2018, the Parties entered a Road Improvement Deposit 

Agreement (the “Deposit Agreement”).  A copy of the Deposit Agreement is attached as Exhibit 

A hereto.   

 

B. Circumstances regarding the Roundabout changed after the effective date of the 

Deposit Agreement.  The changed circumstances include:  (i) The Deposit Agreement 

anticipated that contracts for construction of the Roundabout would be noticed for public bidding 

in July 2018.  It is now anticipated that bidding will commence in December 2018 with actual 

construction to commence in the spring of 2019  (ii) The Parties anticipated that entitlements for 

the Developer’s Project would not be completed until after the Roundabout construction 

contracts were awarded and that a Development Agreement would be needed to protect their 

individual and mutual interests.  The Parties now anticipate that Developer’s Project entitlements 

will be completed at approximately the same time as Roundabout construction contracts are 

awarded.  These changed circumstances and others warrant modification of the deadlines 

established in, and other provisions of, the Deposit Agreement.     

 

C.  The Parties desire to amend the Deposit Agreement to (a) extend the deadline for 

completing the negotiation of a Development Agreement and (b) modify the timing of 

Developer’s Deposit.  

 

 D.   It is the Parties’ intention to supersede this Deposit Agreement with the terms of 

the Development Agreement referenced herein.      

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this First 

Amendment, the City and Developer agree as follows: 

 

Section 1:  Incorporation of Recitals.   

 

1.1 The foregoing Recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated into 

this First Amendment by this reference.  

ITEM  8A
6 of 19



September 26, 2018 DRAFT 

 

 

Section 2: Effective Date and Term. 

 

2.1 Effective Date.  This First Amendment shall be dated, and the obligations of the City and 

the Developer shall be effective as of the date upon which this Agreement is executed by the 

City (the “Effective Date”).  

2.2 Term. The Term of this First Amendment shall commence on the Effective Date.  This 

First Amendment does not extend the expiration of the Deposit Agreement which, by its terms, 

expires on May 8, 2020, unless extended as therein provided.  

 

Section 3:  Road Improvements. 

 

3.3 The Parties acknowledge that the Developer timely deposited $120,000.00 of the 

Developer’s Deposit into escrow upon the City’s request.  The Developer shall deposit an 

additional $30,000.00 upon written request by the City when the City has expended the initial 

$120,000.00 deposit.  Finally, upon execution of a mutually acceptable Development Agreement 

by the parties, the Developer shall deposit the final contribution toward Road Improvements, as 

defined in the revised cost estimates and scope, in the sum of $90,000. 

 

Section 4. Expenditure and Credit or Return of Developer’s Deposit. 

 

Section 4.2.1 of the Deposit Agreement is amended to read:  

 

 4.2.1 The Developer’s Deposit assumes, in part, the successful negotiation of the 

Development Agreement.  To that end, if the Parties have not successfully negotiated and 

formally approved the Development Agreement within 120 days of the date of this First 

Amendment, then the Developer’s Deposit shall, be refunded to Developer in full together with 

all interest accrued thereupon in the Escrow Account, as follows: 

  

  4.2.1.1 If the City has or can reasonably acquire sufficient cash resources to 

refund the entire Developer’s Deposit and accrued interest, then the City shall repay the 

Developer’s Deposit and all interest accrued thereupon in cash or equivalent. 

 

  4.2.1.2 If the City reasonably and in good faith determines that refunding the 

Developer’s Deposit and all accrued interest in full is not feasible, the City shall refund any 

unexpended portion of the Developer’s Deposit plus any amount of the expended portion of 

Developer’s Deposit that the City reasonably and in good faith determines it can afford to refund 

and repay the balance of Developer’s Deposit pursuant to the terms of a promissory note (the 

“Refund Note”).  If this repayment option is selected by the City, the Refund Note shall (a) have 

a principal balance equal to the full unpaid balance of the Developer’s Deposit not refunded, (b) 

be due and payable in two equal annual installments of interest and principal, (c) be fully 

amortized over its duration, and (d) carry interest at the rate of three percent (3%) per .annum.  

 

  4.2.1.3 The Developer may, in its discretion, elect to apply the sums to be 

refunded or owed by the City on the Refund note to mitigation impact fees or other City 

exactions applicable to Developer’s Project. 

ITEM  8A
7 of 19



September 26, 2018 DRAFT 

 

 

Section 8.  Revised Road Improvement Cost Estimate and Scope Exhibit 

 

8.1 The cost estimate and scope of work exhibit attached to the original Road Improvement 

Deposit Agreement shall be deleted and replaced with the Exhibit attached hereto.  The parties 

generally agree to a revision of the costs to exclude the now eliminated right turn lane into the 

project, and add in certain utility relocation costs that were not included in the approximately 

$240,000 original total deposit sum.  

 

 

Section 9. Deposit Agreement Otherwise Unmodified.   
 

9.1 The remainder of the Deposit Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  All 

provisions of the Deposit Agreement are applicable to and incorporated into this First 

Amendment, except to the extent that such provisions are inconsistent herewith.  If any term, 

condition or provision of the Deposit Agreement is inconsistent with the provisions of this First 

Amendment, then the provisions of this First Amendment shall control to the extent necessary to 

resolve or interpret any such inconsistency.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 

CITY: 

 

CITY OF COLFAX, a California municipal corporation 

 

By:  ___________________________________________ 

 Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

 

Date: ___________________________________________ 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

COLFAX AUBURN, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company 

 

By:   ___________________________________________ 
 Jaskaran Gill, Member 

 

 

By: ___________________________________________ 
 Sukhwinder Bhangu, Member 
 

 

 

ITEM  8A
8 of 19



EXHIBIT D 

Revised 70% PS&E Submittal (Eliminated Right Turn Pocket) 

City of Colfax – S Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout 

 EXHIBIT D  
  September 17, 2018 

 

 

 

 

Non Participating Costs - 
Developer Funded 

ITEM 
NO. 

ITEM 
CODE 

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION 
Unit of 

Measure 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Item Price TOTAL 

1 190101  ROADWAY EXCAVATION CY 350 $45.00 $15,750.00 

2 193013 F STRUCTURE BACKFILL (RETAINING WALL) CY 26 $200.00 $5,200.00 

3 260203  CLASS 2 AGGREGATE BASE (CY) CY 232 $85.00 $19,720.00 

4 390132  HOT MIX ASPHALT (TYPE A) TON 150 $110.00 $16,500.00 

5 390133A  TEXTURED HOT MIX ASPHALT SQYD 60 $50.00 $3,000.00 

6 475000 F RETAINING WALL STEM (TYPE 6) SQFT 183 $150.00 $27,450.00 

7 510094 F STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, DRAINAGE INLET CY 10 $2,000.00 $20,000.00 

8 641100A P 6" PLASTIC PIPE LF 123 $50.00 $6,150.00 

9 650411 P 18" REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (CLASS IV) LF 110 $150.00 $16,500.00 

10 700617  DRAINAGE INLET MARKER EA 2 $65.00 $130.00 

11 730020  MINOR CONCRETE (CURB) (CY) CY 4 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 

12 730070  DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE SQFT 120 $40.00 $4,800.00 

13 731504  MINOR CONCRETE (CURB AND GUTTER) CY 24 $650.00 $15,600.00 

14 731521  MINOR CONCRETE (SIDEWALK) CY 38 $800.00 $30,400.00 

15 750001 P-F MISCELLANEOUS IRON AND STEEL LB 1018 $2.25 $2,291.00 

16 810230 P PAVEMENT MARKER (RETROREFLECTIVE) EA 10 $6.00 $60.00 

17 820750  FURNISH SINGLE SHEET ALUMINUM SIGN (0.063"-UNFRAMED) SQFT 29 $13.35 $388.00 

18 820760  FURNISH SINGLE SHEET ALUMINUM SIGN (0.080"-UNFRAMED) SQFT 8 $14.25 $114.00 

19 820840  ROADSIDE SIGN - ONE POST EA 1 $225.00 $225.00 

20 820860  INSTALL SIGN (STRAP AND SADDLE BRACKET METHOD) EA 3 $150.00 $450.00 

21 840505  6" THERMOPLASTIC TRAFFIC STRIPE LF 144 $1.10 $159.00 

22 840506  8" THERMOPLASTIC TRAFFIC STRIPE LF 32 $1.25 $40.00 

23 840515  THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING SQFT 211 $8.00 $1,688.00 

24   FURNISH AND INSTALL 12" WATERMAIN LS 1 $28,700.00 $28,700.00 

25 872130  MODIFYING EXISTING ELECTRICAL SYSTEM LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 
 Developer Work Subtotal $239,315.00 

 

ITEM  8A
9 of 19



ITEM  8A
10 of 19



ITEM  8A
11 of 19



ITEM  8A
12 of 19



ITEM  8A
13 of 19



ITEM  8A
14 of 19



ITEM  8A
15 of 19



ITEM  8A
16 of 19



ITEM  8A
17 of 19



ITEM  8A
18 of 19



ITEM  8A
19 of 19



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE  SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: September 10, 2018 
SUBJECT: Grant Funding for Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Improvements 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 58-2018 authorizing the City 
Manager to sign and file a Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement for the State Water 
Resources and Control Board for the planning, design, and construction of Sewer Collection System and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements. 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

The State Water Resources Control Board and the nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards, collectively the 
State Water Board, protects and improves water quality in California through several regulatory and financial 
assistance programs.  The Federal Clean Water Act established the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
program to finance the protection and improvement of water quality. 
 

Section 79723 of Proposition 1 allocates $260 million to the CWSRF Small Community Grant (SCG) Fund. The 
State Water Board has an annual SCG appropriation of $8 million dollars, which is administered consistent with 
the CWSRF Intended Use Plan (IUP), and the CWSRF Policy. The Proposition 1 funds will supplement existing SCG 
authority. CWSRF applications are accepted on a continuous basis, and eligible projects are funded as 
applications are completed and approved.  

 

The SCG Fund allows the State Water Board to assist communities in California with the most need, helping 
those that cannot otherwise afford a loan or similar financing to move forward with water quality 
improvements. According to the 2016 Median Household Income (MHI) Data, the City of Colfax could qualify for 
a 100% Grant as long as all the components of the project are eligible under the CWSRF Policy.  Grant funds may 
be awarded up to $500,000 for Planning and $6,000,000 for Construction. 

 

The City would like to seek grant funding to conduct a comprehensive sewer Collection System and Wastewater 
Treatment Plant improvement project to improve operations, make needed system repairs and upgrades, and 
reduce ongoing operational costs. The City is hopeful that the grant dollars will offset future rate increases by 
reducing infrastructure upgrade obligations.  Other benefits would include:  Energy efficiency, reduction of 
Inflow and Infiltration (I&I), prevention of Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s), and replacement of City 
Infrastructure that has exceeded its useful life. 
 
 
 
 

ITEM  8B
1 of 3

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/index.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/finalpolicy0513.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/srf/srf_forms.html


2 

 

 
City Staff has identified the following activities to be considered for this potential funding: 

1. Pump Station 3 Force Main Repair 
The City lift station #3 Force Main Pipe is constructed of asbestos concrete that is severely aged. The 900 
linear feet of 4 inch pipe has required maintenance to address a section that recently failed. During the 
repair, City staff noticed the pipe has become brittle, which indicates further issues are inevitable. The 
construction project is planned to use either open trench or bursting to remediate the system 
deficiency.  
 

2. Installation of Solar at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
The cost of Utilities (primarily electricity) is the second highest cost of Sewer Operations and accounts 
for approximately 15% of total operating costs.  The City would like to pursue having solar panels 
installed at the WWTP through a purchase agreement. 
 

3. Algae Control – Installation of Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF)  
During the wet season, influent flows which are higher than the WWTP is designed to handle are stored 
in the plant’s pond system. The water is then recovered from the ponds and added to the influent for 
treatment. 
 

Storing water rich in nutrients, combined with warm temperatures, and sun causes algae to grow. The 
WWTP is not equipped to deal with algae, as it causes an increased, but false, Chemical Oxygen Demand 
(measurement of chemicals in the water that can be oxidized) and turbidity issues. The plant operators 
use the Chemical Oxygen Demand to calculate process changes needed. Turbidity monitoring is a NPDES 
(National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) requirement per the State Water Resources Control 
Board’s permit for the WWTP.  
 

The WWTP’s permit requires dewatering the storage ponds adequately for the next wet weather 
season. Currently the WWTP has no treatment process to facilitate the removal of algae to effectively 
dewater the ponds on a consistent basis. The goal is to purchase a .25mgd (million gallons/day) 
Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) or Suspended Air Flotation (SAF) to allow the operators to coagulate and 
dispose of the algae prior to adding stored water back into the treatment system.  
 

4. Sewer Collection System Improvements 
The City would like to review and update the Wastewater Collection System Condition Assessment 
created in 2010 and develop a construction plan for remaining repairs to reduce I&I. 
 

The City completed two large I&I remediation projects in 2010/11 and 2012/13.  The projects replaced 
or lined nearly 18,000 feet of sewer main(40% of total), rehabilitated over 47 manholes (29%), and 
replaced more than187 laterals (27%) between the main and the property lines.  This new project would 
enable the City to review the Remaining C1 (Condition assessment of Immediate Risk of Failure) Repairs 
that were identified previously and assess the current condition of the sewer collection system 
pipelines.  The aforementioned repairs reduced the peaking factor during rain events to eight times the 
flow during dry season.  The new I&I project goal is to reduce the flow peaking factor to four times the 
dry flow, thus diminishing the need to upsize collection pipes leading to the WWTP. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Grant applicants must submit a resolution or ordinance adopted by its governing board authorizing the 
application and designating an Authorized Representative (by title) to sign the CWSRF financing agreement and 
make other certifications.  Staff recommends adopting the resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for 
the planning, design, and construction of Sewer Collection and Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 58-2018 

ITEM  8B
2 of 3



ATTACHMENT F4 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE 

RESOLUTION NO: 

OF THE _ _____

This Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, 
and commitments required for the financial assistanc
agreement from the State Water Resources Control B

The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, 
Entity's responsibilities under the financing agreemen
the Entity and compliance with applicable state and fe

CE

on _ _ 
(Date) 

Financial Assistance Application 
(Rev. 10/2017) 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

WHEREAS --,--------,-�.,...---,---RESOL

_________ City of Colfax_

The--Ci--ty Manager---,,,,,,..,...----,-
of 

-----,--::,-------

hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for an
Application for a financing agreement from the State 
and construction of ________ __,,,,__,--Sewer Collection System and -

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, a
at a meeting of the __________The City Co_

_____September 26, 2018___ 

Grant funding for  
improvements to the sewer 
system is desirable, it is hereby 

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

      

___________________________________
               Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk

WHEREAS GRANT FUNDING FOR IMPROVEME
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCI

ITEM  8B
3 of 3
_______ _  -201858
__ (the "Entity"), AS FOLLOWS: 

is designated to provide the assurances, certifications, 
e application, including executing a financial assistance 
oard and any amendments or changes thereto. 

is designated to represent the Entity in carrying out the 
t, including certifying disbursement requests on behalf of 
deral laws. 

RTIFICATION 

Page 4 of6 Clean Water State Revolving Fund (Planning or Design) 

VED BY THE---City Council-

- (the "Authorized Representative") or designee is

d on behalf of the Entity, a Financial Assistance 
Water Resources Control Board for the planning, design, 
WWTP Improvements-,-------- (the "Project"). 

nd correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly adopted 
un_____cil of the City of Colfax____________ held 

______________________________________
 Will Stockwin, Mayor

NTS TO THE SEWER SYSTEM IS DESIRABLE, 
L OF THE CITY OF COLFAX AS FOLLOWS.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE SEPTEMBER 26, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 
 

FROM: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Battalion Chief Brian Eagan 

DATE: September 15, 2018 
SUBJECT: Donation of Antique Fire Engines to Colfax Firefighters Association. 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 59-2018 authorizing donation of 
two antique fire trucks to the Colfax Firefighters Association. 

 
BACKGROUND:  
The City of Colfax owns two antique fire engines, a 1936 Dodge Fire truck, “currently used in parades and other 
events” and a 1946 International Fire truck, “not running”. 
 
The Colfax Firefighters Association is requesting the City of Colfax donate both of these antiques to them. The 
Association would like to continue to maintain and use the 1936 Dodge as a parade truck. In the future, the 
Association hopes to refurbish the 1946 International so that it too could be used for parades and other events. 
(See the attached letter of donation request, dated July 23, 2018). 
 
Currently both trucks are stored at the City’s Fire Stations.  The Association’s President and Treasurer have 
agreed the vehicles will need to be removed from City property once the Association takes ownership. They 
both understand the City of Colfax and Fire Department Administration stipulation that both vehicles will be 
removed from City property within 60 days to recover the storage space currently taken up by the antiques.  
Also it is not good business practice to store such items on City property once the ownership has been 
transferred as it could open the City for liability claims. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no fiscal impact to the City of Colfax. 
  
CONCLUSION:   
The Fire Department’s Administration approves and supports the donation of both trucks to the Association.  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution 59-2018 
2. Letter of request from Colfax Firefighters Association 

ITEM  8C
1 of 5



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 59-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING DONATION OF TWO ANTIQUE FIRE TRUCKS TO THE 
COLFAX FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax owns two antique fire engines, a 1936 Dodge fire truck 
and a 1946 International Fire truck; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association volunteers have successfully restored 
the 1936 Dodge for use as a parade truck; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association would like to continue to maintain 
and use the 1936 Dodge fire truck in this capacity and refurbish the 1946 International fire 
truck to also be used in parades and events; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Colfax Firefighters Association has agreed to remove both vehicles 
from City of Colfax property within sixty days of taking ownership and assume liability for 
the vehicles; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the City to 
donate the two vehicles to the Colfax Firefighters Association for the purpose of 
refurbishing the antiques for parades and other events.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax to 
authorize donation of the 1936 Dodge fire truck and the 1946 International fire truck to the 
Colfax Firefighters Association. 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the 
Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 26th of September 2018 by 
the following vote of the Council: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                            ___________________________________ 
        Will Stockwin, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM  8C
2 of 5



ITEM  8C
3 of 5



ITEM  8C
4 of 5



ITEM  8C
5 of 5


	00A 180926 Agenda
	04A 180822 Minutes
	04B Cash Summary August 2018
	2019-02 Staff Report Cash Summary Aug 2018
	August 2018 Cash Summary Data

	04C Sierra Oaks Sewer Easements
	Staff Report Sierra Oaks Sewer Easements September 26 2018
	Resolution 54-2018 Sierra Oaks Easements
	Attachment 2 - Easement Recorded 4-23-2018 (annotated in red)
	Attachment 3 - Ouitclaim two sewer easements April 23, 2018
	Attachment 4 - Sewer Easement (replacement)

	04D Bureau Veritas Contract Amendment
	180926 SR Contract Extension Bureau Veritas Building Inspector
	Resolution 55-2018 Contract Extension Bureau Veritas Building Inspection Services
	180926 Bureau Veritas 4rd Amendment
	150710 Bureau Veritas Fully Executed Building Inspection Services

	07A CUP Hearing for 120 N Foresthill
	180926 SR 120 N. Foresthill -Fatula CUP
	Resolution 56-2018 120 Foresthill CUP - Fatula
	COA 9-26-18
	Att 3 Site Plan
	Att 4 House Elev
	Att 5 House 1st flr pln
	Att 5 House 2nd flr
	Att 6 Garage elev
	Att 7 Garage 1st flr plan
	Att 7 Garage 2nd flr plan
	Att 8 Photos

	08A Maidu DA Amendment
	180926 SR Maidu Village Dep Agreement amenddoc
	Resolution 57-2018 Maidu Village DA Amendment
	180927 Maidu DA Amendment 
	180920fh_Exhibit D
	180411 FE Deposit Agreement Maidu Roundabout

	08B Grant Funding WWTP
	CWSRF Grant Application - Staff Report September 2018 (Autosaved)
	Resolution 58-2018 Authoizing WWTP Grant Application

	08C Fire Truck Donation
	Colfax City SR Fire Engine Donation
	Resolution 59-2018 Antique Firetruck Donation
	Antique FE donation request




